

# FWD INSURANCE: SMART INSURANCE FRAMEWORK – AI EVERYWHERE

Winner of Celent Model Insurer 2022 Award for Data, Analytics, and Al

Max Ang

March 16, 2022

This is an authorized reprint of a Celent report profiling a Model Insurer Award winner. Reprint granted to AWS. The report was written by Celent and was not sponsored by AWS.

For more information, please contact Celent (www.celent.com.or info@celent.com).

# **CONTENTS**

Case Study at a Glance	
Celent Perspective	6
Detailed Description	7
Introduction	7
Opportunity	8
Solution	8
Technology and Implementation Challenges	9
Results	10
The Smart Insurance Framework	12
Lessons Learned and Future Plans	13
Summary	14
Leveraging Celent's Expertise	15
Support for Financial Institutions	15
Support for Vendors	15

# **CASE STUDY AT A GLANCE**

This case study was made possible by contributions from the FWD Insurance team. Contributing credits goes to Dr. Yao Yuhui, Sally Lee and, Stephanie Lim of FWD Group Office.

The FWD Group Data team developed a smart insurance framework, an Aleverywhere approach that aims to transform the insurance journey by leveraging advanced technologies and artificial intelligence (AI) power.

Financial Institution	FWD Insurance	
Initiative	Insurance Framework—AI Everywhere	
Synopsis	FWD is focused on making the insurance journey simpler, faster, and smoother, with innovative propositions and easy-to-understand products, supported by digital technology.	
	The FWD Smart Insurance Framework is an Aleverywhere approach that aims to transform the customer insurance journey by leveraging advanced technologies and AI power. This was possible with the close collaboration between FWD's Group Data team and country teams, who leveraged advanced analytics to build inhouse AI models such as AI Next Best Offer, and AI Lapse Prevention to improve the customer experience.	
Timelines	Al Next Best Offer + Customer 360     (Thailand):	
	a. Project duration: 12 months	
	<ul><li>b. Soft launch: October 2019</li><li>c. Official launch: February 2020</li></ul>	
	Al Lapse Prevention + Al Voice Bot     (Philippines):	
	a. Project duration: 4 months	
	b. Soft launch: September 3, 2021	

2022

#### **Key Benefits**

1. AI Next Best Offer + Customer 360 (C360) Customer prospecting and conversion are managed through AI C360, which provides a holistic view of FWD's customers' insurance needs at the product category level to agents for cross-selling/upselling. Additionally, C360 offers an AI prediction of the next-best product for each customer, with over 80% accuracy in its application in Hong Kong SAR, Thailand, Singapore, and Vietnam.

The combined use of AI Next Best Offer and C360 in Thailand doubled the uplift in policy sales from 2019 to 2020, and top-performing agents also successfully converted up to 55% of the leads assigned for cross-sell.

Customer persistency rates also saw uplift among customers who were contacted by telesales agents and serviced by using C360.

2. Al Lapse Prevention + Al Voice Bot
At FWD Philippines, the output from four Al
models (High Risk to Lapse, High Risk to
Surrender, High Propensity for Win Back, and
Cross-sell for Next Best Offer) was integrated
with Customer Intelligence 360 to alert them to
customers with policies at risk of lapsation.
FWD contact center agents can now undertake
early and appropriate intervention to improve
timely policy payments.

Subsequently, the launch of Lapse Prevention initiatives in May 2021 saw the use of machine learning (ML) models and AI Voice Bot call (AIX+) technology. Email was sent prior to automated outbound calls to customers with policies due for payments and with a higher likelihood to lapse. The retention rate for High Risk to Lapse customers improved by 4%, and contact rates for customers improved by up to double, using AI Voice Bot versus agents from the Conservation team.

The AI lapse models provide insight to allocate resources efficiently and target higher risk cases to pay renewal premiums via AI

	Customer 360. FWD has also developed five Al lapse models in Thailand, each of which is tailored to various bancassurance and agency subchannels. As a result, the payment success rate has improved from 7% to 11% from the fourth quarter of 2020 to the first quarter of 2021.
Key Vendors	AWS, Informatica, Hortonworks, G-able (Thailand)

# **CELENT PERSPECTIVE**

The ability to design, describe, and execute a groupwide data strategy framework with a centralized platform and data lake on Amazon Web Services (AWS) for the Customer 360 Dashboard and data analytics models showcase the integrated data ecosystem concept. Led by the FWD Group Data team, they showcase the winning strategy of business, data, and technology integration. The awareness for data integration, data governance processes, and data quality checks, together with support from management and a push for organizational data literacy help develop the culture needed to place data initiatives as the core of the modern insurer.

- The ability to orchestrate an overarching data strategy with the FWD Smart Insurance Framework provided data-centric guidance for developing analytics and AI/ML initiatives. This places data management at the core of the insurer, which shows an understanding of using data as the foundation for insurance innovations, and complements the data-heavy nature of the insurance industry.
- This winning case study showcases an important consideration for the digital-first, next-generation insurer to support operations with strong data applications with consideration from management support and future data literacy efforts. The innovation stems not only from the technical implementation of the AI/ML initiatives (which was highlighted in the Philippines and Thailand use cases) but from the overall awareness of executing a framework for groupwide data transformation. The scale of this case study can be a good reference for insurers who are looking to modernize their current infrastructure with upcoming data-driven initiatives.
- The Smart Insurance Framework and the Group Office Data Platform (GODP)
  was described in detail, and the accompanying interview for the nomination
  submission of Dr. Yao Yuhui, Group Chief Data Officer for FWD Insurance,
  showcased the importance of leadership execution and successful
  partnership between the insurer and its technology infrastructure provider.
- The focus of bringing together the business management, the salesforce, and the customers in the design of a data-driven and customer-led framework by the FWD Group Data team makes this a Model Insurer for the Data, Analytics, and AI category, because it illustrates how data initiatives can deliver real business values to the stakeholders through an ecosystem of partnerships, data integration, and education with management support. At the same time, FWD ensures that its operations are secured by strong data governance to provide privacy protection and security with high data quality.

# **DETAILED DESCRIPTION**

Traditionally, the insurance industry has been slow to adopt new technologies and is often associated with business practices that come with pain points, such as industry jargon, clunky tools, and difficult claim processes. Today, however, digital technology advancement has made it possible for FWD to continue to reshape the insurance landscape, which enables it to deliver operational efficiency and accelerate the creation of more accurate AI models to improve the customer experience across all touchpoints.

#### Introduction

FWD has a vision of changing the way people feel about insurance and, with a legacy-light, digital-first model, has been able to adopt new technologies and explore opportunities to accelerate the use of AI. FWD deployed numerous techniques such as providing tailored quotes to customers and risk alerts during onboarding, enhancing the repurchase journey and making faster claims payouts.

Through a continued focus on innovation, proprietary digital tools, and data analytics, FWD has made its customers' insurance journey simpler, faster, and smoother, providing them with an experience that the insurer believes is best in class.

The Smart Insurance Framework enabled FWD to extend beyond its core services and use data to create new value propositions to meet its customers' evolving needs. To create a simpler, faster, and smoother customer journey experience, FWD recognized the need for a modern data architecture framework that improves operational efficiency.

In June 2020, FWD built a Group Office Data Platform (GODP), which streamlines and integrates customer data in a single platform that is smart, secured, and scalable. This platform allows business users to harness data and insights and run analytics across its markets to help support a spectrum of initiatives. FWD's operations are secured by strong data governance to ensure privacy protection and security with high data quality.

Table 2: FWD Insurance Snapshot		
Year Founded	2013	
Headquarters	Hong Kong SAR	
GWP	US\$5 billion, accumulated figures since 2013	
Assets	US\$62.6 billion	
Geographic Presence	10 markets in Asia (Cambodia, China, Hong Kong SAR & Macau SAR, Indonesia, Japan,	

	Malaysia, Philippines, Singapore, Thailand, Vietnam)
Employees (2020)	6,400, including group employees, with 36,000 agents
Other Key Metrics	9.9 million customers and 19 bancassurance partners and 24 ecosystem partners in the region (as of June 2021)
Relevant Technologies and Vendors	Cloud/hybrid cloud, API, AI/ML (NLP/NLG, NLU, machine vision, decisioning), conversational AI or IVA, data management technology (e.g., data lakes, data fabric, next-gen electronic direct mail [EDM]), data science, and data governance procedures.

Source: FWD Insurance

#### Opportunity

Distribution channels, including FWD telesales agents in Thailand, previously encountered challenges in their day-to-day interactions with customers, ranging from the lack of a single customer view to toggling multiple systems and screens to retrieve customer information. Limited use of data analytics and insights also meant that resources were not optimized, and a lack of a unified view meant that customers were not receiving personalized customer experiences.

With today's digital technology, FWD can use customer data insights to help them make critical business decisions and develop fresh solutions for their customers, strengthening customers' trust and confidence that FWD will be there when they need it most.

#### Solution

The FWD Smart Insurance Framework is an AI-everywhere approach that aims to transform the insurance journey by leveraging advanced technologies and AI power. The smart insurance framework in Figure 1 illustrates how an integrated single source of data and AI technology can empower the insurance value chain and customer journey.

Change the way people feel about insurance EMBEDDING ADVANCED ANALYTICS ALONG OUR CUSTOMER DIGITAL JOURNEY DATA-DRIVEN AI-EVERYWHERE Polaris Incentive Dashboard Al Dynamic Pricing 2 Al Insurance Score Experience Speedometer 3 Al Next Best Product Awareness 11 Customer Dashboard 5 Auto Claims Purchase 1 2 9 4 10 6 Smart CRM Digital Distribution Dashb Re-purchase 3 7 8 NRM Pulse Dashboard 8 Early Lapse Predicti 9 Data Sharing & Customer 720 Protection Dashboard **4 Key Focus Areas** Recommendation Engine ESG Dashboard Polaris Multi-Channel Personalisati One Data Foundation: Single Source of Truth Source: FWD Insurance

**Figure 1: FWD Smart Insurance Framework** 

The feature of the GODP platform includes:

- Data standardization through a single source
  - Consolidation of all FWD data from heterogeneous systems into a single secured platform ensures groupwide data standardization, data confidentiality, and metrics consistency.
- Self-service business intelligence (BI)
  - Facilitates management and business users with key data intelligence and analysis on the go, enabling them to make smarter decisions. The powerful visualization data dashboards offer users a good grasp of their business measurements across FWD markets in a timely manner.
- Real time processes

Real time processes remain up to date with business demands and customer expectations by processing huge amounts of data in real time.

Continuation of AI capability advancement
 Advancement of AI capabilities maximizes business value and operational efficiency by feeding in the latest customers' data and preferences, which continue to better FWD in-house AI/machine learning capabilities.

### **Technology and Implementation Challenges**

To develop the Smart Insurance Framework, FWD faced several challenges that they had to overcome:

Poor data quality and different technologies used by IT applications
 Each department had its own IT applications and customer data storage, which accumulated to over 6,000 tables of data. This led to inconsistent and poor data quality. For instance, 20% of customer phone numbers were invalid. IT applications were using different technologies, and there was difficulty in integrating data into a single platform.

A centralized cloud data lake and data warehouse on AWS helped to create a C360 Dashboard. FWD also implemented data governance processes to

address issues such as data quality, guided by a set of core principles to ensure compliance and transparency. The centralized cloud data lake and data warehouse also provided the flexibility to use a range of analytics and AI tools to build the advanced analytics models.

C360 Dashboard initial requirements failed to satisfy user expectations
 Phase one of the C360 Dashboard spanned 12 months: from requirement gathering to design, development, and user acceptance testing (UAT). During UAT, the testers from the telesales team faced challenges for the validation of data models. This was due to initial requirements being submitted without actual user inputs, which resulted in the dashboard failing to satisfy user expectations. This process was subsequently redesigned and caused a significant delay to the project timeline and added costs.

A pilot version was rolled out to four telesales agents in October 2019 to test the viability of the dashboard. In February 2020, it was launched to 40 telesales agents. Subsequently, new AI features and design improvements were released in the following two years. One of the most recent achievements includes the launch of the C360 Pilot to the agency channel, consisting of 14 agents.

FWD recognized that IT support from local markets was paramount to the implementation and integration of AI models with existing systems. The Group Data team sought early approval from FWD Group's executive committee, followed by market roadshows to seek approval from country CEOs, senior management, and business users, which ultimately ensured that the AI initiatives were prioritized with adequate IT resources allocation.

#### Results

Through the Smart Insurance Framework and GODP, two notable key deliverables are:

#### 1. Al Next Best Offer + C360

In Thailand, FWD AI Next Best Offer model helps to identify products for high-potential customers and are prioritized for telemarketing calls. FWD created a C360 dashboard to display the latest information on customers' policies and claims, which was then integrated with AI recommendations, using data science techniques. These insights provide FWD agents with a deeper understanding of their customers, allowing the insurer to craft a personal touch and deliver a best-in-class customer experience.

Al Next Best Offer harnesses data and Al to improve upsell/cross-sell campaign conversion rates. The display of intelligent recommendations on the C360 Dashboard also helps agents and telemarketers improves their productivity. Figure 2 shows the benefit of the C360 platform.

Jan - Dec 20 **Business** Improvement Top 1 Seller Interview 17.5% higher Renewal rate 55% 2 C360 Benefit 2X Over 2X Uplift in policies Improved cross sold from 2019 to rate vs BAU Monthly Actual Personal Technique Assisted APE . Daily Search all Customers in C360 as Explore Customers' Product Holding a offer pension product when they have vari

Figure 2: FWD Thailand Next Best Benefit and C360 Benefits and Techniques

Source: FWD Insurance

#### 2. Conservation Framework: AI Lapse Prevention + AI Voice Bot

Prolonged lockdown due to COVID-19 has had an impact on the insurance industry in the Philippines. With increasing unemployment rates, the need to protect basic needs often surmounts the perceived need for insurance protection, which has caused an increase in customers surrendering their policies before maturity or lapsing in payments.

At FWD, customers are at the heart of everything. FWD understands the need to adapt to a changing landscape while balancing the importance of staying insured. FWD set up a dedicated taskforce to understand its customers' pain points and expectations via telesales surveys and agent feedback. As illustrated in Figure 3, a conservation framework was developed to introduce new solutions such as a payment grace period and premium payment programs.

What Consumers Look For?

Deferred Payment Program
Low Premium to Reinstate
ADA / ACA Enrollment

Persistency

Programs

Pre-lapse and Eapse and Engagents

Programs

Programs

Pre-lapse and Eapse and Eapse and Eapse communication for new and eagents

Withdrawals

Programs

Programs

Pre-lapse and Eapse and Eapse Communication for new and eagents

Warket
Outlook
Warket

Figure 3: FWD Philippines Conservation Framework

Source: FWD Insurance

The FWD Data team analyzed historical customer behaviors, providing key insights to facilitate decision-making. FWD built and integrated four data analytics models (High Risk to Lapse, High Risk to Surrender, High Propensity for

Win Back, and Cross-sell Next Best Offer) into the call center's C360 and AI/ML chatbot to support ongoing efforts to retain customers better. The models predict the likelihood of a customer with lapsed policy to be reinstated, design personalized campaigns, and recommend preemptive actions to retain customers. Figure 4 shows the models built and the appropriate use cases for lapse preventions.

**Figure 4: Analytics Models to Support Conservation Programs** 



Powered by AI and delivered with malasakit (empathy/care), FWD aims to meet its customers' needs and improve the customer experience and persistency rate in the Philippines.

The use of data allowed FWD to evolve and predict customer responses more accurately, develop a better understanding of customer needs and behavior, and in turn serve them better. By taking advantage of real time information, FWD can provide personalized experiences, upsell/cross-sell more relevant products to the right segments, and retain valuable customers, thereby improving the customer journey.

#### The Smart Insurance Framework

Under the Smart Insurance Framework, the GODP integrates all disparate data sources into a centralized data lake. The Smart Insurance Framework was developed to infuse AI along the entire customer journey, provide intelligent customer experiences, and streamline the various touchpoints.

With the approval from FWD Group's Executive Committee, the Group Data team conducted several roadshows to local CEOs, senior management, and business users to share the new Al-driven initiatives, prioritize focus areas, and align on a common strategy across their markets. FWD appointed data leads across its markets; they worked closely with the Group Data team, comprising data partners, data architects, and data engineers.

To achieve the Smart Insurance goals, FWD took an innovative approach by leveraging its customer data for a single-customer view. With a single-customer view, FWD can analyze historical customer behaviors and provide key insights to facilitate the teams' decision-making to deliver improved customer experiences.

For instance, the four AI models under the Philippines' Conservation Framework integrate with the Customer 360 Dashboard in FWD's contact center and frontend applications such as AI Voice Bot and FWD TAPP, a self-service insurance app, enabling timely payment reminders and delivering Next Best Offer recommendations directly to customers, which improves persistency and cross-selling. The front-end applications are illustrated in Figure 5.

Figure 5: Analytics Model Intelligent Indicators at Front-end Applications and Touchpoints

Front-End Applications Agent **Contact Centre** AIX+ (Voice Bot) with risk of lapsation / irrender timely reminder calls indicator so they premium due Next Best can assist clients to customers with policies due for in managing 9 ering based Q persistency, via mobile app, IRIS. payments and have high Policy FWD Enabling intelligent risk alerts IRIS... on Customer C360 recommendation direct to customers, thus improving Providing customers with personalised content so they can self-help and manage their policies better. customise conversations and persistency rate and crosstake pre-emptive actions to manage risk.

Source: FWD Insurance

FWD intelligent alerts on Thailand's C360 Dashboard enables telesales agents to take appropriate actions instantly, either to retain customers or to offer personalized product recommendations.

#### Lessons Learned and Future Plans

The alignment and support from senior management in the FWD Group Office provided the support for early digital adoption and has propelled FWD forward as a data-driven organization. Due to this digital-first and data-driven ethos, several innovative applications of AI/ML technology have driven business performance and improved customer experience.

Data analytics and AI architecture serve as FWD's central building blocks and empower its entire operations and functions, from customer engagement, distribution, and partner enablement to operation automation and intelligent management of customers' policies. With AI analytics implemented in eight out of ten markets, FWD is committed to using data analytics to gain insights into its customers' experience and support various aspects of its business operations. FWD applies data analytics and AI across sales, underwriting, claims, policy administration, actuarial, collections, and finance functions to automate processes and enhance operational efficiency. FWD has implemented an AI-driven, automated underwriting engine to provide a faster and simpler

underwriting process to customers. FWD also expanded its team of data scientists, data engineers, and data analysts, representing approximately 40% of its total headcount at the Group Office level as of September 30, 2021. FWD has set out to redefine distribution with a digital heart and human touch by digitally transforming traditional channels and building new ones. FWD believes that its innovative technologies and tools have been well received by its partners and have significantly boosted their productivity.

#### Summary

A clear aspiration for a best-in-class customer experience guided FWD's development of the Smart Insurance Framework. Its vision, changing the way people feel about insurance, sets the strategy for innovative and customer-led ideas.

In addition, FWD's core values underpin two characteristics in the organization's work ethic: "caring" and "innovative." FWD's customer-led approach demonstrates the insurer's care toward the lives of its customers and its mission to recommend products and services that best meet customers' needs. FWD promotes continuous financial education, and frequent customer interactions have helped ensure that customers understand the importance of being protected.

## LEVERAGING CELENT'S EXPERTISE

If you found this report valuable, you might consider engaging with Celent for custom analysis and research. Our collective experience and the knowledge we gained while working on this report can help you streamline the creation, refinement, or execution of your strategies.

#### **Support for Financial Institutions**

Typical projects we support include:

**Vendor short-listing and selection.** We perform discovery specific to you and your business to understand your unique needs better. We then create and administer a custom request for information (RFI) to selected vendors to assist you in making rapid and accurate vendor choices.

**Business practice evaluations.** We spend time evaluating your business processes and requirements. Based on our knowledge of the market, we identify potential process or technology constraints and provide clear insights that will help you implement industry best practices.

**IT and business strategy creation.** We collect perspectives from your executive team, your front-line business and IT staff, and your customers. We then analyze your current position, institutional capabilities, and technology against your goals. If necessary, we help you reformulate your technology and business plans to address short-term and long-term needs.

#### **Support for Vendors**

We provide services that help you refine your product and service offerings. Examples include:

**Product and service strategy evaluation.** We help you assess your market position in terms of functionality, technology, and services. Our strategy workshops will help you target the right customers and map your offerings to their needs.

**Market messaging and collateral review.** Based on our extensive experience with your potential clients, we assess your marketing and sales materials—including your website and any collateral.

#### **COPYRIGHT NOTICE**

Copyright 2022 Celent, a division of Oliver Wyman, Inc., which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Marsh & McLennan Companies [NYSE: MMC]. All rights reserved. This report may not be reproduced, copied or redistributed, in whole or in part, in any form or by any means, without the written permission of Celent, a division of Oliver Wyman ("Celent") and Celent accepts no liability whatsoever for the actions of third parties in this respect. Celent and any third party content providers whose content is included in this report are the sole copyright owners of the content in this report. Any third party content in this report has been included by Celent with the permission of the relevant content owner. Any use of this report by any third party is strictly prohibited without a license expressly granted by Celent. Any use of third party content included in this report is strictly prohibited without the express permission of the relevant content owner This report is not intended for general circulation, nor is it to be used, reproduced, copied, quoted or distributed by third parties for any purpose other than those that may be set forth herein without the prior written permission of Celent. Neither all nor any part of the contents of this report, or any opinions expressed herein, shall be disseminated to the public through advertising media, public relations, news media, sales media, mail, direct transmittal, or any other public means of communications, without the prior written consent of Celent. Any violation of Celent's rights in this report will be enforced to the fullest extent of the law, including the pursuit of monetary damages and injunctive relief in the event of any breach of the foregoing restrictions.

This report is not a substitute for tailored professional advice on how a specific financial institution should execute its strategy. This report is not investment advice and should not be relied on for such advice or as a substitute for consultation with professional accountants, tax, legal or financial advisers. Celent has made every effort to use reliable, up-to-date and comprehensive information and analysis, but all information is provided without warranty of any kind, express or implied. Information furnished by others, upon which all or portions of this report are based, is believed to be reliable but has not been verified, and no warranty is given as to the accuracy of such information. Public information and industry and statistical data, are from sources we deem to be reliable; however, we make no representation as to the accuracy or completeness of such information and have accepted the information without further verification.

Celent disclaims any responsibility to update the information or conclusions in this report. Celent accepts no liability for any loss arising from any action taken or refrained from as a result of information contained in this report or any reports or sources of information referred to herein, or for any consequential, special or similar damages even if advised of the possibility of such damages.

There are no third party beneficiaries with respect to this report, and we accept no liability to any third party. The opinions expressed herein are valid only for the purpose stated herein and as of the date of this report.

No responsibility is taken for changes in market conditions or laws or regulations and no obligation is assumed to revise this report to reflect changes, events or conditions, which occur subsequent to the date hereof.

For more information, please contact info@celent.com or:

Max Ang mang@celent.com

Americas EMEA	Asia-Pacific
---------------	--------------

#### USA

99 High Street, 32<sup>nd</sup> Floor Boston, MA 02110-2320

+1.617.424.3200

#### Switzerland

Tessinerplatz 5 Zurich 8027

+41.44.5533.333

Japan Midtown Tower 16F 9-7-1, Akasaka Minato-ku, Tokyo 107-6216

+81.3.6871.7008

#### USA

1166 Avenue of the Americas New York, NY 10036

+1.212.345.8000

#### France

1 Rue Euler Paris 75008

+33 1 45 02 30 00

#### **Hong Kong**

Unit 04, 9<sup>th</sup> Floor Central Plaza 18 Harbour Road Wanchai

+852 2301 7500

#### USA

Four Embarcadero Center Suite 1100 San Francisco, CA 94111

+1.415.743.7800

#### talv

Galleria San Babila 4B Milan 20122

+39.02.305.771

#### Singapore

138 Market Street #07-01 CapitaGreen Singapore 048946

+65 6510 9700

#### Brazil

Rua Arquiteto Olavo Redig de Campos, 105 Edifício EZ Tower – Torre B – 26º andar 04711-904 – São Paulo

+55 11 3878 2000

#### **United Kingdom**

55 Baker Street London W1U 8EW

+44.20.7333.8333